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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To
The Members of M/S.Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Pvt Ltd
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/S.Merhaki Foods and Nutrition
Pvt Ltd (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2022, its profit (or Loss)* for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section
143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the code of ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the
Company as it is an unlisted company.
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Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report
including Annexure to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Repor’t but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial comrols that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a Statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters, We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India In terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,

Wwe give in the “Annexure 1”, a statement on the matters Specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order

2. As required by the section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

L. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

ii. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears {rom our examination of those books;

iil.  The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

iv. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statement comply with the Accounting
standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014;

V.. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March
2022, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the
directors is disqualified as on 3] March 2022, from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

vi.  With respect to the other matters included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Accounts) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us:

a. The company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position materially.

b. The company did not have any long term contracts including derivatives contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses

¢. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the company. ‘
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d. The company has used such accounting software for maintaining its books of
account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same
has been operated throughout the year for all transactions recorded in the software
and the audit trail feature has not been tampered with and the audit trail has been
preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.”.

e. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

f.  Since the Company’s tummover as per last audited financial statements is less than
Rs.50 Crores and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at any time
during the year is less than Rs.25 Crores, the Company is exempted from getting
an audit opinion with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls vide notification dated June 13, 2017,

For Y. T.Gandhi & Associates.,
Chartered Accountants

Firm W 0. 0109908
4

Yogesh T Gandhi
Proprietor

Membership No. 215599
Place: Bangalore

P 14lg 25
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Annexure 1” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirement’ of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2022:

(1) (a) (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;

(B) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets;

(b) These Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals; whether any material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification and if so, whether the same have been properly dealt
with in the books of account;

(¢) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the
company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the company, if
not, provide the details thereof in the format below:-

Description off Gross carrying | Held in name Whether Period |Reason for not
property value of promoter, ‘held —|being

director or|indicate |held in name of|
their range, |company*
relative or |where
employee appropri
ate

NA NA NA NA NA NA

L

(d) As per our opinion the company has not revalued its Proper’ty, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(¢) In our opinion no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the
company or holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder

(i) (a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management, no discrepancies of 10%_or more in the aggregate for each class of

AN &S
N\

inventory were noticed;
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(b) During any point of time of the year, the company has not availed any working

(iii)

(iv)

capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause
3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable

During the year the company has not made any investments in or provided any
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured
or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and then provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any

other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules,

2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.

(vi) In our opinion and Information provided by management, maintenance of cost records

(vii)

(viii)

(1x)
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specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act is not applicable on the company hence company is not liable to
maintained such accounts and records.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks in current period. The
Company has not taken any loan either from financial institutions or from the
government. Debentures were issued by the company during the year and the company
has not defaulted in payments of any due.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded
in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as
income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

-Based on our examination of the records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations give to us and, the Company has not availed any loans or
other borrowings from any lender during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix)(a) of the order does not arise.

-According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not been
declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix) (b) of the order does
not arise.
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m
-In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not taken any term loans during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(ix)(c) of the order does not arise.

-Based on our examination of records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise any funds during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the order does not arise.

-Based on our examination of records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or
associate companies. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the order does not
arise.

-According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries companies.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the order does not arise.

(x) (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial
public offer or further public offer including debt instruments and term Loans.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.

(b) The company has made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year and
the requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been
complied with and the funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the
funds were raised.

(x1) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not-a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xii1) In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections
177 and 188 of Companies Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in
the financial statements, etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards;

(xiv) In our opinion the company has not required internal audit system commensurate with
the size and nature of its business;
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(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given

by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xvi) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xvii) The company has incurred cash losses in the current financial year. The details given
below: -

(Amount in Million)
Sr. Financial Profit after tax | Depreciation & ! Cash
No. Year Amortisation ~ (Losses)/profit
1 2020-21 (25.86) 0.71 (25.15)
2 2021-22 (81.60) 0.62 i (80.98)

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

(xix)

(xx)
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On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board
of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

In our opinion section 135 is not applicable, in respect of other than ongoing projects,
the company has transferred unspent amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the
Companies Act within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in
compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act:
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(xxi) In our opinion no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies.

For Y.T.Gandhi & Associates.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0J0990S

&G

Ydgesh T Gandhi
Proprietor

Membership No. 215599
Place: Bangalore

Date: 74/?/22

Page 10 of 10



Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(All amounts in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Notes As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021|  Apr 01.2020
A. |ASSETS
1. [Non current assets
(a) [Property, plant and cquipment Bl 0.42 1.5} 2.23
(b) [Intangible assets B2 - 0.03
(¢) [Intangible ascets under development B2 0.43 .
(d) |Deferred tax assets (net) B3 z 26.93 18 06
(¢) |Non-¢urrent tax asscls B4 0.00 0.16 0,08
Total non-current assets 0.85 28.60 20.40
2. |Current assets
(a) [Inventories B3 44 .85 10.90 1316
(b) |Financial asscts
1. Trade receivables Bo 2550 4.17 6.06
it. Cash and cash equivalents B7 341 1.73 24.66
1i. Other financial assets BS 049 0.96 0.95
(¢) |Other current assets B9 2347 16.38 13.12
Total current assets 97.72 34.14 57.94
TOTAL ASSETS (1+2) 98.57 62.74 78.34
B. [EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. [Equity
(a) [Equity share capital BI0 6.81 2,59 259
(b) |Instrument entirely equity in nature Bl1O - 20934 27.81
(¢) |Other equity Bl 21.66 22.30 37.95
Total equity 28.47 423 68.35
Liabilities
2. [Non-current liabilitics
(a) [Financial liabilities
i. Bortowings Bi2 20.00 -
(b) [Provisions Bl3 0.11
Total non-current liabilitics 20.11 - -
3. |Current Liabilitics
(a) [Financial habilities
1. Borrowings Bl4 - 2.22
ii. Trade payables Bi5
Totloutstanding dues ot micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.33 -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 40.44 3.78 7.11
small enterprises
iil. Other financial liabilities Bib 1.40 2.08 2,10
(b) |Other current liabilitics B17 1.82 043 078
Total current liabilities 49.99 8.51 9.99
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (1+2+3) 98,57 62.74 7834
Summary of significant accounting policies A

The accompanying notes arc an ntegral part of the Standal

In terms of our report attached

Yogeyh T"Gandhi”
Propfictor
Mcmhcrshig No. 215599

UDIN 19299 15529APCIY] 4321
;':."f‘:”ﬁ“”aﬁéw
’ lé/@k/mog

one Financial Statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors off
Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited

Yot

Supam Maheshwari

CIN - U24100RI201 7PTCO39188

XY
in Agarwal

Director =Director
DIN - 01730685 BIN-00022157




Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
Statement of Profit and loss for the Yaer ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in INR Millions. unless otherwise stated)

Notes for the year ended for the year ended
Marceh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
I. |INCOME
Revenue from operations BIR 9534 56.66
Other income Bl19 0.06 (.04
Total income 95,40 57.60
2. |EXPENSES
(a) [Purchases of traded goods B20 76.91 2091
(b) (Changes in inventorics B2} (33.95) 2.36
(¢) [Employee benefits expense 3549 16.77
(d) [Finance costs 2.14 0.38
(¢) [Depreciation and amortisation expense B24 0.62 0.71
(1) |Other expenses R25 68.83 51.30
Total expenses 150.06 92.33
3. |Profit/(Loss) before tax (54.66) (34.73)
4. | Tax expense:
(a) |Current tax expense - -
(b) |Deferred tax (expense)credit (26.93) 8.87
Total (26.93) 8.87
5. |Net profit for the year (3 - 4) (81.59) (25.86)
6. |Other comprehensive income
I
i. |Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
a. [Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (0.05)
il |Income tax relating (o items not reclassified - -
u
i. |Ttems that may be reclassified to profit or loss
a. |Current vear gains (losses) -
il |Inconie wx relating 1o items not reclassihed
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) (1 + 11) (0.08) -
Total comprehensive income for the year (5 + 6) (81.64) (25.86)
Earning per share B26
Basic (17.30) (9.99)
Diluted (17.30) (9.99)
Summary of significant accounting policies A

T'he accompanying notes are an integral part ol the Standalone Financial Statements

In terms of our report attached
For Y T Gandhi & Associates

Chartered Accountants 2
Firyﬂ\‘o. ()l()%ﬁ

Y T (;aﬂdhi
Jroprictor
Membership No. 215599

ODIN - 22215999 APCI YI43RL

Place -

Date - M/O 02002‘1

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors o
Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited

CIN - U24100RI201 7PTCO59188

Supam Maheshwari

Director
DIN - 01730685

m Agarwal
Rircctor
DIN=-00022157




Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al amounts in INR Millions. unless otherwise stated)

for the year ended for the year ended
March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
A. |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit before tax (54.606) (34.73)
Add |Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 0.62 0.71
Employment cost 17.19 :
Bad Debts written off 0,01 3 84
Finance cost 1.94 0.35
Interest income (0.04) (0.52)
(Profit) ' Loss on Sale of fixed asscts 0.44 (0.02)
Operating profit before working capital changes (34.50) (30.37)
Changes in working capital
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Inventories (33.90) 2.26
Trade receivables (21.35) (1.96)
Other financial assets (current) 0.47 (0.01)
Other current assets (7.09) {3.20)
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables 42.99 (3.33)
Other financial liabilities (current) (0.68) (0.02)
Provisions 0.00 -
Other liabilities (current) 1.40 (0.35)
Cash generated from operations
Less: [Direct taxes paid (net of relund) 0.16 (0.08)
Net cash gencrated from operating activitics (52.50) 37.12)
B. [CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property. plant and equipment (0.50) (0.16)
Sale proceeds of property, plant & equipment 0.11 0.22
Interest received 0.04 052
Net cash used in investing activities (0.35) .58
C. [CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares (net) 20.00 -
Proceeds from issue of preference shares (net) 18.69 11.75
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 20.00 -
Proceeds from current borrowings (2.22) 2,22
Finance charges paid (1.94) (0.35)
Net cash generated from financing activities 54.52 13.62
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents A+B+C 1.67 (22.92)
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning 1.74 24.66
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 3.41 1.74
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash in hand 001 0.01
With banks
- In current account 340 1.73
Total 3.41 1.74

Summary of significant accounting policics

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements

In terms of our report attache
For Y T Gandhi & Associgtes

Pyoprietor
Membership No. 215599

UDIN * R215599APCI Y h 321

Ak

A

Supam Maheshwari

For and on behalf of the Board ol Directors of

Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited

CIN - U24100RI201 7PTCOSO 18K

Director
DIN - 01730685

Niti pgarwal
P Director

DIN-00022137




Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al amounts in INR Millions. unless otherwise stated)

Equity Sharc Compulsorily
Capital Convertible
Preference
Share Capital
Balance as at April 01, 2020 2.59 27.81
Change in share capital - 1:53
Balance as at March 31, 2021 2.59 29.34
Change in sharc capital 4.22 (20.3.4)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 6.81 -
Other Equity
Other
Reserves and surplus comprehensive
Particulars 2 o T —— Total
Securities Equity . Remeasurement
premium contribution R('m!nvd of net defined
carnings o=
account from parent benefit liability
Balance as at April 01, 2019 72.36 - (19.65) - 52.71
Profit/(loss) for the year . - (56.87) - (56.87)
Sceurity premium on issue of shares, net 42.10 - - - 42.10
Recognition of share based payment « - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 114.40 - (76.52) - 37.04
Profit for the year - - (25.86) - (25.86)
Security premium on issuc of shares, net 10,22 - - - 10.22
Recognition of share based pavment - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 124.68 - (102,38) - 22.30
Profit for the year (S1.59) (0.05) (81.64)
Sceurity premium on issue of shares, net 6381 - - - 63.81
Accerued during the vear - 17.19 - - 17.19
Recognition ol share based payment - - - . w
Balance as at March 31, 2022 188.49 17.19 (183.97) 0.05) 21.66

Sceurities premium account : This reserve represents the premium on the issue of shares (net) and can be utilized i accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

Retained carnings : This reserve represents the cumulative profits of the company. This reserve can be utilized in accordance with the provisions
of the Companics Act, 2013,

Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability : This reserve represents changes in the liabilities over the year due o changes in aciuarial

;lssumplmns orexperience adjustments recognized in Other comprehensive income and subsequently not reclassificd to the Statement of profit and
0SS, - \ A

Debenture redemption reserve « Since, there are no distribatabl i
it ) se B L able profite during the current peniod, the company 1s NOLrequired 1o create debes s
redemption reserve as specified under Section 71 o the Companicn Ace. 2014 P PR o e

In terms of our report attached
For Y'T' Gandhi & Associates

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors off
Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
CIN - U29100RI1201 7P 1( 039188

Proprfetor
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Director
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Corporate information
Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited (( ‘ompany™) was mcorporated ag a private hmsted company i India under the Compames Aty 2013
2017. The Company’s registered oflice is situated n Bangalore. The Company is into manufacturing and tading of other food products.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared i accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 1233 read with Rule 44 of

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

For all penods upto and includmg the vear ended March 31, 2021, the Company prepared ifs financial statements m accordance with Generally Aceepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) i India and complied with the accounting standards (Indian GAAP) as noufied under Section 133 of the € ompanies Act.
2013 read together with Rule 7 ol the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, 1o the extent applicable, and the presentation requirements of the Companies Act,
2013.

I'he financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022 are the first financial statements of the Company prepared under Ind AS. Accordingly. the
Company has followed the provisions of Ind AS 101, “First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards’. in preparing its opening Ind AS Balance
Sheetas of the date of ransition, .. April 01, 2020, Certam of the Company”s Ind AS accounting pohicies used i the opeming balance sheet diftered (rom
iy Indian GAAP policies apphied as at March 2021, and accordingly adjustments were made to restate the opening balances as per Ind AS. As the resulting
adjustments arose from cvents and transactions before the date of transition o Ind AS, hence as required by Ind AS 101, such adjustments were recogmsed
direetly through retained earmings as at April 01, 2020,

Reter note B37 for the effect of transition to Ind AS on the reported financial position, financial performance and cash fows of the Company

Ihe financial statements are presented i Indian Rupee (INR). which is also the tunctional currency of the Company

Rasis of preparation and presentation

These financial statements have been prepared i accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the acerual
basis except for certain financial mstruments which are measured at faur values, the provisions of the Companies Act . 2013 ("Act). The Ind AS are
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

The Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and Accountung policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounuing standard requires a change m the accounting policy hitherto m use.

Historical cost convention
Histarical cost s gencrally based on Uie 1air vihue of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of financial statements in conformiuty with ind AS requires management o make judgments, estimates and assumpuons that allect the
apphcation of accounting policies and the reported amounts of asscts, liabilitics. income and expenses and the accompanymg disclosures. Uncertamty about
the assumptions and estimates could result n outcomes that require in material adjustment to the canying value of s .

assets or habilities aflected m future
periods

Fstimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongomg hasic. Revisions to accounting estumates aie recognised m the perod i which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected
Functional and presentation currency

I'he ninancial statements are presented in Indian Rupee CINR™) Millions. which s also the functional currency of the Company




Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al amounts in INR Millions. unless otherwise siated)

Measurcment of fair values

A number of the companies accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both linancial and non-financial assets and
liabilities. The company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values wherein the overall responstibility for
overseeing all sigmificant fair value measurements

Fair values are categorised into different levels i a fair value hierarchy based on the mputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1t quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilities.

- Level 2t inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liabihty. cither directly (1.e. as prices) or mndirectly (i.c.
denved trom prices).

- Level 3. inputs Tor the asset or abifity that are not based on observable market data (unobservable mputs)

When measuring the fair value of an assct or a liability, the company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fawr
value of an asset or a hability fall into different levels of the fair value hicrarchy, then the farr value measurement is categorised m its entircty in the same
level of the fair value hierarchy ac the loweet level mput that is significant to the entire measurement.

FFurther information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values 1s included in the following notes:
- Note B33 - Far value measurements

- Note B39 - Share based payment arrangements

Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and habilities in the balance sheet based on current  non-current classification

Anassetis classified as current when it satisfies any ol the following criteria:

- s expected 1o be realized i, or is intended for sale or consumption i, the Company”s normal operating cyele

-1t1s held primanly for the purpose of being traded;

- itis expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a hability for at least 12 months after the reporting date,

A hability 1s classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- 1t1s expected to be settled i the Company s normal operating cyvele,

- 1t1s held primarily for the purposc of being traded:

- 1tis due to be settled within 12 months afier the reporting date; or

- the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the hability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a habibty that
could, at the option of the counterparty, result i its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current assets/liabilities mclude current portion of non-cunemt financial assets Liabilities respectively, Al other assets labilities are classificd as non-
current. Deferred wx assets and labtlities are classilied as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisiton of assets for processig and their realization m cash or cash cquivalents, the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current non-current classtfication ol assets and liabihtes
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The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Revenue recoguition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that the economic benefits will fow 1o the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured,
regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined tenns of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behulf of the govermment. The Company assesses its revenue
arrangements against specific criteria 1.e., whether 1t has exposure to the significant risk and reward associated with the rendering ol services

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer.

Services
Service ncome s recognised on accrual basis over the period of service, Revenues for services are recogmsed when the service rendered has been
completed

Interest

Interest income and expenses are reported on an acerual basis using the effective interest method. Interest income from a financial asset 1s recogmsed when
1t is probable that the economic benefits will flow 1o the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income 1s acerued on a time
basis, by reference to the principle outstanding and at the eflfecuve interest rate applicable, which s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset 1o that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recogmition

Property, plant and cquipment (' PFE")

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impawment, if any. Costs directly attributable o acquisition are
capitalized until the property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by management. Other meidental expenditure attributable to bringing the
fixed assets to their working condition for mtended use are capitalized. Subsequent expenditure relating to fixed assets is capitalised only 1if such
cxpenditure results in an increase 1o the future benefits from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. The Company depreciates
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using the stra ight-line method.

Depreciation 1s recognised so as to write off the cost less their residual values over therr useful lives, using the written down method. The estimated useful
lives. residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of cach reporung period, with the cffect of any changes in estmate accounted or on
a prospective basis,

The management believes that these estimated usetul lives are realistic and reflect lair approximation of the period over winch the assets are likely o be
used

The estimated useful life considered for the assets are as under.

Category of assets Number of years
Plant and machinery 10
Office equipments 5
LI Equipments 3
Furniture and fixtures 3

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted 1 appropriate.
Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.c. from (upto) the date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of).

/éy\\
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Al amounts in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)
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2.6

2.7

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are amortized over their respective mdividual estimated
uxclul Tives on a straight-line basis. fiom the date that they are available tor use. [he estmated uselul life of an identifiable intangible asset 1s based on a
number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry, and known
technological advances), and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash Mlows from the asset. Amortization methods

and useful lives are reviewed periodically mcluding at each financial year end.

I'he useful life considered for the intangible assets are as under:

Category of Asscts No. of Years

1

Software

Financial instruments

Initial recognition
Finaneial assets and financial liabilities are recogmised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

All financial assets and habihities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade recervables which are initially measured at transaction
price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable 1o the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial habilities. that are not at fair value through
profit or loss, are added o the fair value on imtial recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date

Subsequent measurement
Non-derivative financial instruments

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial assct is subsequently measured at amortised cost i1 it is held within a business model whose objective is o hold the asset in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the linancial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

nterest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive mcome if 1t is held within a business model whose objective is
s and the contractual terms of the financial asset give nse on specified dates o

achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial asse
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and mterest on the principal amount outstanding. The Company has made an irrevocable clection for its
mvestments which are classified as equity instruments to present the subsequent changes i fair value in other comprehensive mcome hased on its business
model. Further, in cases where the Company has made an imevocable election based on its business model, for its investments which are ¢l sified as equity
nstruments,  the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized n other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which 1s not classified in any of the above categones are subsequently far valued through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for contingent consideration recognized in a
business combination which is subsequently measured at fan value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the
balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate far varlue due to the shont maturity of these instruments.

Derecognition of financial instruments

I'he Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or 1t transfers the financial asset
and the teansfer qualifies for derccogniton under Ind AN 109 A financial hability (or a part of a financial liability) 1s derecognized ffom the ¢ lll\l])'l;)v\'i
balance sheet when the obligation spectfied in the contract 1s discha ged or cancelled or expires. . ) o
Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial mstruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumpuions that are based on market conditions and
risks existing at each m)mﬂlpg date. The methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market n'm'; and
dealer quotes. All methods of ssing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may ncvﬁ actually be realized. ‘ e

Impairment

Financial asscts

]l.( % ' e . P ” o g 2 o > y ”

: he Inn.'np"m_\ us,ugn!m.\ loss allowances using the expected credit loss (FCL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or
oss. [oss .llln\\"aucc tor trade receivables with no sigmificant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime (|
assets, expected credit losses are measured at an (U )¢ ST

i pe o (:]n 0sses are measured at an amount ¢equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial
'“)g.l ! n u; which case those are measured n* hfeume ECL. The amoumt of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss
allowance at the reporting date 1o the amount that js required (o be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in profitor loss . h

For all other financial

Non-financial assets

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets ' : g ent are evalug I

' 2 .L assets and property, pl.ln! and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes m circumstances indicate that therr carryimg
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (Le il s

. ; . the higher of the fair value less cost to sell 4 .
value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does i §5 costto sell and the

not generate cash flows that are lary oely independe [ i
(A58 Hhios rsmeer - . s that 4 .4 pendent of those from other assets
In such cases, the recoverable amount is determmed for the cash generatmg unit to which the asset belongs P

I such assets are considered to be impaired, the impamment to be recognized i the st

atement of profit and loss is measured by the an g
o > of the assote SS 1 g 1wunt by whi g
carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset Tyl . . 1 e

An impairment loss is revey, Semel : i g
’ - B A 3 by ment o profit and locs if there
has but.n a ul}z(l;lgL I the estimates uced to determine the recoverable amount. The carmymg amount of d\ (R0 ills revised o ‘h'l
amount, prov at this " s e 48 s revised recoverable
n FrO\l ed that lhl..\ amount does not exceed the ca smonnt that would have been detey Aih s§umulated  amortizati
depreciation) had no mpaimment loss been recognized for th 7 |>|'T5i"\‘\‘cfus. =4 Smatization. or

\
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(Al amownts in INR Millions. unless otherwise stated)
2.8  Provisions

2.

10

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation Uegal 7 constructive) as a result of past events and 1t is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, m respeet of which a rehable estimate can be made.

I'he amount recogmised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required (o settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the abligation, When a provision 1s measured using the cash flows estimated o settle the present
obligation. 1ts carrying amount is the present value of those each flows (when the eftict of the time value of monoy 15 materialy

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at rates of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction Monetary assets and habilities denominated i foreign
currencies as at the balance sheet date are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the year-end. Non-monctary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in forcign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fur value was determined. Non-monetary ttems that arc
measured in terms of historical cost 0 a foreign currency are not retranslated

Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign currency transactions are included detenmining net profit for the period n which the
transaction 1s settled. Revenue, expense and cash-tlow items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the relevant functional currencies using

the exchange rate in eflect on the date of the transaction.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period

Diluted carnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit atributable (o the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
cquity shares considered for derving basic camings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been tssucd
upon conversion ol all dilutive potential cquity shares. The ditutive potental equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares
been actually 1ssued at fair value (1.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of
the beginning of the pertod. unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

Taxation

Income tax expense recognised i Standalone Statement of Profit and 1.oss comprised the sum of deferred tax and current tax except the ones recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current Tax \

Current ncome tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount expected 1o be paid 1o or recovered from the tax authorities, usimg the tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred income tax assets and labilities arc recognized for all
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and labilities and their carrying amounts 1n the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at cach reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related 1ax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax
Deferred mcome tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balanee sheet

date and are expected 0 apply o wxable meome m the years in which those temporary differences are expected 10 be recovered or settled. The eftect of

chzmgc,x‘m tax rates on deferred ncome tax assets and liabilitics is recognized as income or expense i the period that includes the enactment or the
substantive cnzicu?lcnl date. A deferred income tax asset 1s recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit w.lll be 'l\"‘lll‘lhl ' ‘t" Ll
wluc.h‘thc deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized. Deferred income taxes are not provided on the undh‘u‘ib‘lrl "' . db:“m'
sulfsndlancs and branches where it 1 expected that the camings of the subsidiary or branch will not be distributed i the foresecable l'ulurlul' L'(l hL:I(r? 1‘»”19' M‘
offSets current tax assets and current tax habilities, where it has g legally enforceable nght 1o set off the recognized amounts 1l where i
scttle on a net basis, or to reahize the assetand scttle the liability simultancously. ‘ S R

Employee benefits

l:mployee benefits include wages and i
A S ages and salanes, pro S S e s ANy o
es and salanes, provident tung, cuployee stale insurance scheme., gratuity fund and compensated absences

Defined Contr ibution Plans
( ontributions to defined contni i are recogmsed as an expense n ¢ (o ave render service ¢ 2 ther > C n ons
defined cc ntribution Pl s are recognised as an xpense whe mplm ¢s have rende ed service entitling them to the cont bution

Defined Benefit Plans

For defined benefit retireme ans, the cost of pry i
sl lul]rum'm meI.x. the cost of providing benefits is deternned using the projected unit eredit method with actuarial valuati t

wrnied out atthe end of each annua reporting period. Re-measur ' . ey

e - Resmeasurement, comprising actuarial eains 4 1 losses [ j .

Eeapplicaties e i SINE actuanal gains and losses. the effect of the changes 1o the asset cetling

PPl r:; on plqn ;LS.S\.IS (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the Balance Sheet with a charge or credit recognised !IHL
Sive income in the pe . - : : 5 ‘ e

e sty l]( ;xnml n wl'ml; nlu_\ oceur. The re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability are recognised dircetly in the otl "

[} ¢ period m o which they anise. Past service cost is I \ ‘ - ' e
‘ S Rt Tt service costas recogmised in the Statemey " Profi i

i ) ‘ e } Matement of Profit and Loss in the pe upl

amendment. Nd'mlu\.\l is caleulated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period (o the L o e e

costs are categorised as follows:

net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit

. service cost (including current service COSL, past service cost, as well as gams
b. net nterest expense or income: and
C. re-measurement

and losses on curtailments and settlements):

I'he retirement benefit obhigation recognised in the balance sheet represents the
surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value
in future contributions to the plans.

actual deficit or surplus
ol any economic benefits availab)

e Y A
\\ \\-( /x\\.
\(v

¢ Company’s defined henefit plans. Any
etunds from the plans or reductions

o 2%
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The company is provides the following as defined benefits plan as -

Gratuity
I'he Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (‘the Graunty Plan’) covering chigible employees, The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-

sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary
and the tenure of employment with the Company.

Liabilities with regard 10 the Gratuity Plan are determmed by actuanal valuation, performed by an independent actuary, at cach balance sheet date using the
projecied unit credit method.  The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan m its balance sheet as an asset or hability. Gains and
losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognized in other comprehensive mcome. The actual return of the portfolio
of plan assets, in excess of the yields computed by applying the discount rate used o measure the defined benefit obligation s recognized other
comprchensive income. The effect of any plan amendments are recognized in net profits in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Short term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the re
for the amount expected o be paid e.g., under Payable 10 emplovee, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a

result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

lated service 1s provided. A liability is recognised

Provident fund
Eligible employees of the Company recetve benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined benefit plan. Both the eligible eployee and the ¢ ompany

make monthly contributions to the provident fund plan equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee's salary. The Company’'s contribution s
recognized as an expense in the statement of prolit and loss during the pertod in which the employee renders the related services

Compensated absences

The Company has a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating m nature. The expected cost of accumulating
compensated absences 15 determined by acwarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date ucing prajectad unit eredit
method on the additional amount expected to be paid-availed as a result of the unused entitlement that hay accumulated at the balance sheet date. Fxpense
on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the period in which the absences oceur,

Employee share based payments

The Company recognizes compensation expense relaung to share-based payments 1n net profit using fair-value in accordance with Ind AS 102, Share-Bascd
Payment. The estimated fair value of awards s charged 10 income on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for cach separately vesting
portion of the award as if the award was in-substance. multiple awards with a corresponding mcrease to share options outstanding account,

Inventori
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and estimated net realizable value (net ol allowances) after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where
considered necessary. The cost of inventories is based on the first-in first-out formula, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventorics.
production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to therr present location and condition. The cost Comprises cost of purchase, cost
of conversion and other costs mcludmg appropriate production overheads in the case of fimshed goods and work progress, icurred n bringing such
mventories Lo their present location and condition. Trade discounts or rebates are deducted in determining the costs of purchase. Net realisable value
represents the estimated sclling price for mventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows :1r.c rcponv{d using the |‘ndxrccl method, whereby protit for the period s adjusted for the effects of Gansactions of non-cash nature, any deferrals
or uLuTmIs of past or l‘ulun: operating cash receipts or payments and item ofincome or expenses associated with investing or finaneing cash flow .\. I'he cash
flows from operating, mvestng and financing activities of the ( ampany are segregated

Other income

Other income 1s compr ised pnnmnlv of interes| come 3 ¢ i £ 8 iR S eres COMC 1S recog sing
b mterest imcome. exchange pain/locs on tmnsl stron ol wther asscy and habihtes ¢S o
; 0 L . ' UL i S, Interest income s rec CA 3
fie et fv i ne 1S rec lcllll\(l using

Lcases

thunlrus 4 lessee to recognize a 'right of use asser’ (ROU) and a corresponding ‘lease liability' for all leases with the exception of short-term (under 2
) 5) i V7 r o QO (Y , *reC Y 1 ! r

me nths) and low-value leases. Lease costs will be recognised i the income statement over the lease term in the form of depreciation on the ROU asset and

finance charges representing the unwinding of the discount on the lease liability, o

The Company plans to ; AS i § 2 o i

i : )‘p‘ s to adopt Ind AS 116 from April 1, 2019 under the modified reaospective approach, and accordingly the comparative figures will not by

u:s a‘u L “Qr contracts i place at ths date, the ( ompany will conunue o apply its existing definition of leases under current daccounting standards, instead

OFreassessing whether existing contracts are or contain « lease at the date orapplication of the new standard -

Ind AS 116, Leases. replaces the ox sianda ; :
AS 116, Leases, replaces the existing standard on accountimg for leases, Ind AS 17, This standard introduces a single lessee accounting model and

]h\\'l ", . "1 ineroae n (O, < Y& 1 i

s ‘c ” a,m?rd' in J::llll(m o lm.rg.mng.xhn Company’s recogmsed assets and labilities, impacts the classification and timing of expenses and consequently
¢ classification between cufh flow from operating acuvities and cashflow from financing activities. However, implementation of Ind AS 16 1S n(;l

expected to have a material effect on the Company’s Financial Statements . -

Balance sheet:
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remaining lease payiments, dnsuoynlcd at 9,56% pey AR, \”]t‘. right-of-uge acsot will generally be measure | Jhe lease Lability adjusted fi
advance payments and accrued liabilities t‘ron’\i(r;}t\ e {oNs hinancial vear - ey
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Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Income statement:
Adoption of Ind AS 116 1s not expected to have material effect on Profit Belore Tax (PB1)

Cash Flow Statement:
I'he change i presentation of operating lease expenses will result in a corresponding improvement in cash flows from operating activities and a decline in
cash flows from financing activities.

2.18 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and balances with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an onginal maturity of three months or less from the
date of acquisition), highly liquid mvestments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes
n value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows. cash and cash cquivalents consist of cash and short-term balances. as defined above. The cash flow
statement 1s prepared using mdirect method

2.19 Rounding off amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off 1o the nearest lacs as per the requirements of Schedule 11 of the Act
unless otherwise stated.

2.20 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability exasts when there 1s a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may. but probably will not, require an outflow
ol recanrces, or a precent obligation whose amount ¢an not be estimated rcliably. Contingent Liabilitics do nOU WAITant provisions, but are disclosed unloss
the possibility of outflow of resources 1s remote,

A contingent assct1s a possible asset that anses from past events and whose existence will be confimed only by the oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. Contingent assets are not recognized n the restated consolidated financial
statements, However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefit will artse, Lthe asset and
related income are recogmized in the pertod in which the change occurs. A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of cconomic benefits 1s probable.

2
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Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

B1. Property, plant and equipment

Furniture & Plant & IT Equipments Office -
Fixtures Machinery Equipment Total

GROSS BLOCK
As at April 01, 2020 * 033 1.33 0.38 0.19 2.23
Additions I 2 0.11 0.05 : 0.16
Deductions 0.12 0.03 0.09 0.01 0.24
As at March 31, 2021 0.21 1.41 0.34 0.18 2.15
Additions - 0.07 - - 0.07
Deductions - 0.80 - 0.14 0.94
As at March 31, 2022 0.21 0.68 0.34 0.04 1.28
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
As at April 01, 2020 = = - = i
Additions 0.12 0.36 0.18 0.05 0.71
Deductions 0.02 - 0.05 0.00 0.07
As at March 31, 2021 0.10 0.36 0.13 0.05 0.64
Additions 0.09 0.34 0.14 0.04 0.62
Deductions - 0.32 - 0.07 0.39
As at March 31, 2022 0.19 0.39 0.27 0.02 0.86
NET BLOCK
As at April 01, 2020 0.33 1,33 0.38 0.19 2.23 |
As at March 31, 2021 0.11 1.05 0.21 0.13 1.51
As at March 31, 2022 0.02] 0.30 0.07 0.02 0.42 |

B2. Intangible Assets

Software license Intangible Total
assets under
development

GROSS BLOCK
As at April 01, 2020 * 0.03 - 0.03
Additions - - -

Deductions 0.03 - 0.03
As at March 31, 2021 - " -

Additions - 0.43 0.43
Deductions - = -

Ag at March 31. 2022 - 0.43 0.43
DEPRECIATION
As at April 01, 2020 -
Additions ' i
Deductions - =
As at March 31, 2021 -
Additions ) _

D\;duﬁh‘\)ﬂb =

As at March 31, 2022 R
NET BLOCK
As at April 01, 2020 0.03 - 0.03
As at March 31, 2021 - -
As at March 31, 2022 - 0.43 0.43

* Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property. plant and equipment as
recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the Previous GAAP and use that as its
deemed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities. This exemption can
also be used for intangible asscts covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible Asscts and invest

roperty covered by Ind AS 40 .




Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended March 31,2022

(AN amoonts in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

B3 Deferred tax asset/liabilities

=

"

Movement in deferred tax asset/liability

Opening balance Recognised in

Recognised in

Closing balance

other statement of profit
comprehensive und loss
income
For the year ended 31st March 2022
Particulars
Linbilities
Financial assets at for valoe
Amortisation of loan
I cases
Assets
Depreciation on fixed assets & Brought 1orward loases 26.03 - (20.9%)
Total 26.93 - (26.93) ~
For the year ended 31st March 2021
Particulars
Linbilities
Financial assets at fair value B
Amortisation of loan
IN.06 8.87 26.93
Total (806 2 8.87 26.93
For the year ended 31st March 2020
Particulars
Liabilities
Financial assets at fatr value -
Amortisation of loan .
Leases =
Assets
Depreciation on fixed assets & Brought forward losses 503 12.43 18.06
Total 5.63 - 12.43 18.06
Tor (he year ended  Tor (he year ended
Mar 31,2022 March 31,2021
Effective Tax Reconciliation
Loss as per Statement of Profitand loss (54.60) (34.71)
Applicable tax rate 25.17% 20.00%
Tax on above (13.76) 9.03)
Adjustments:
Permanent differences 444 004
DIA not recognised on losses 9.27 0l
DTA recogmsed nll last year reversed in current year Ity U1 ’
DTA not recognised on property. plant and equipment ~l,J (4
Adjusted tax expense 26.93 (8.87)
Tax as per profit and loss
Current tax
Delerred tax : -
(26.93) 387
26.93 (8.87)
As at As at As af

NOR-CUFFERE tax aAssels

Non-current tax asscts

Inventories

Iraded Goods

(valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower)

March 31, 2022

Mar 31,2021

Apr 0L, 2020

0.00 0in 00y
0.00 0.16 0.08
As at As at As at

March 31, 2022

Mar 31,2021

Apr 01, 2020

10.90

1316

10.90

13.16




Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022

Al amounts in INK Millions, unless otherwise stafed,
(A amounts in INK Mt less ol ) — e -
March 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021 Apr 01,2020
B6 Trade receivables
Considered good - secured . 3 -
Considered good - unsecured 25850 4.17 6.00
Trade receivable which have significant increase in credit risk
Irade receivable - credit impaired 7 - "
28 50 417 6.06
Impairment allowance (alfowance for had and doubtful debt)
L. Trude receivable which have significant increase in ¢ redit nisk =
Less: Trade reccivable - credit impuired = <
25.50 4.17 6.06

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company eithier severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other

receivable are duc from finns oF pnvate companies respectively in which any director 1s a partner. a director or a member

I'rade receivables are non-interest bearing and are yenerally on terms o 130 10 60 days.

Trade receivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2022

OQutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars
Less than 6| 6 months to) 1 year - 2 year| 2 year - 3 year More than 3 years Total
months I vear|
Undisputed trade recicvables - considered] 2550 s 25.50

good
Undisputed trade recievables which havel . -

significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed  trade  recievables - credit
umpaircd

Disputed trade recievables - considered good

Disputed trade recievables - which have
significant increase in credit risk
Disputed trade recievables - credit impaired - -

Trade receivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2021

Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6/ 6 months to [ yeur - 2 year| 2 year - 3 year| More than 3 years Total
monthsy 1 year
Undisputed trade recievables - considered 4.4 0.03 4 2 E
good ' B

Undisputed trade recievables - which have - =

|significant increase in credit risk - . ‘
Undisputed  trade  recievables credit
umpaired

Disputed rade recievables « considered good

Disputed  trade recievables - which have
signifivant increase in credit nisk
Disputed trade recievables - credit impared




Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(Al amonnts in INR Millions, uniess otherwise stated)

Trade receivables ageing schedule as at March 31. 2020

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from duc date of payment
Less than 6{ 6 months to 1 year - 2 vear| 2 year - 3 year| More than 3 years Total
months 1 vear|
Undisputed  trade ves ievables ounsidered| £22 o8 s . - 0.00
pood
Undisputed trade recievables - which havel - - -
significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed  trade  recievables - credit - - - - - -
| impaircd
Disputed trade recievables - considered good -
Disputed trade recievables - which havel
significant increase in credit risk
Dioputad wads res wvables - credit impaired =
As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021 Apr 01, 2020

B7 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents Jnclude cash on hand and in bank Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the reporting

period as shown in the statement of cash HJows can be reconciled 1o the related ttems in balance sheet as follows

Cash in hand 0.01 0.01 0.01
Balances with banks:
On current aeeounts 140 0.60 506
On deposit accounts - 1.12 19.59
Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 141 1.73 24.66
Cash and cash equivalents as per statement of cash flows 341 1.7} 24.66
As at Asat AS at
March 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021 Apr 01, 2020
B8 Other financial assets
Interest accrued 0.13 015
Security deposit 0.49 0.83 080
0.49 0.96 0.95
As nt As at As at
March 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021 Apr 01, 2020
BY Other current assets
Balance with government authorities 22.00 13.52 10.13
Advance to emplovees 0.07 0.02
Unadjusted foreign exchange gain @ loss - 0.04 -
Prepayments 0.290 013 0.24
1 22.96 13.69 10.39

Advances to supplicrs
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise 0.51 2.69 273
Unsecured, considered doubtful ¥

N ) 0.51 2.69 2.73
Less: Provision for doubttul advances

i 0.51 .69 273

111 2347 16.38 13.12




Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al amounts in INR Millions, unless atherwise stated)

Asat As at As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31,2022 Mar 31,2021 Mar 31,2021 Apr 01, 2020 Apr 01, 2020
Nos Amount Nos Amount Nos. Amount
B10 Share Capital
a Authorised shares
i Equity share capital of Re 1 each
As at the beginning of the reporting ycar 38.50.000 385 38.50.000 383 3%,50,000 3.8%
Increase/(decrease) during the year 32.00.000 3.20 - - - -
As at the end of the reporting year 70.50.000 7.08 138.50.000 3.85 38,50,000 1.85
ii Compulsorily Convertible Preference Share of Rs 10 each - Series Seed 4
As st the heginming of the reporting year 31,55.000 31.55 3(.55.000 3155 31.55.000 31.55
Increase (decrease) during the year 3.00.000 3.00 i
As at the end of the reporting year 34.55.000 34.55 31.55.000 31.55 31.55.000 31.55
b Issued, subscribed and paid np
i Fquity share capital of Rs 1 each
As at the beginning of the reporting year 2587839 259 2387830 259 23.86.081 2.59
Add- fssued during the year 2,22 4.22 - - 1,758 0.00
As at the end of the reporting year 68.10.655 6.81 25.87.839 2.89 25.87.839 259
ii 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs 10 each®
As at the beginning of the reporting year 26 14 3 RLT0 2781 21,51.795 21.52
Add: Issued during the year 1.77 1.53.122 1.53 6.29.375 6.29
Less: Conversion during the year (31,11.705) (31.12) - = 2 .
As at the end of the reporting year - - 29.34.292 29.34 27.81,170 27.81

¢ Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
T'he Company has only one class of equity shares having par value OF INR 1 per share, Each sharcholder is entitled 1o one vote per share. Dividend if any declared 1s payable n Indian

Rupees

d Terms/ rights attached to compulsorily convertible preference shares of Re 10 each
Preference Shares @ [he Company issued Series Sced 4 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) having & par vatug of INR 10 per sharc. Lach sharcholder 15 eligible for one
vote per share held. only if any proposed resolution directly affects any nghts or the interest of the holder including resolution for winding up or yeduction of share capital. Fach COPS s
entitled 1o a preferential dividend of 0.0001% per annum pavable in Indian Rupees

‘Ranking: The CCPS shall rank senior o all classes of shares current Iy existing or established hereatter. with respect to distributions and shall rank pan passu with the equity shares m ail
other respects including voting rights and adjustments for any stock splits. bonuses, sub-division. recapitalization.issuance of bonus shares, non-cash dividends distributions to holders of
shares, reclassification. conversion. buyback. cancellation. consolidation or merger

Di\'i(!clld - The holder of cach Series Seed CCPS shall be entitled to preferential dividend at the rate of 0.0001% (zero point zeTo 260 ZCro ONC per cent) per year for all the Series Seed 4
(A( PS till such time that the Series Seed 4 CCPS are owstanding The Series Seed 4 CCPS shall be participating preference shares and shall be entitled to participate in any dividend
distribution to holders of Fquity Shares on an as if converted basis

Each Series Seed 4 CCPS shall be convertible into Equity Shares in the ratio of 11 subject 1o provision provided

During the year, 3,111,705 number of CCPS were converted into Equity shares,




Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(A amounes in INK Millirs, uridcsy athenvise siated)

Asat Asat As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31,2022 Mar 31,2021 Mar 31, 2021 Apr 01, 2020 Apr 01,2020
Ne. of Shares Y, holding __ No. of Shares % holding No, of Shares % holding
¢ Shares held by holding company
Globalbees Brands Private Limited 638.10,655 100.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Asat Acat As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31,2022 Mar 31,2021 Mar 31,2021 Apr 01,2020 Apr 01, 2020
No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares o, holding No. of Shares %% holding
{ Details of equity sharcholding more than 5% shares in the company
Ankur Goyal - 0.00% 25.59.904 98.92% 25.59.964 98.92%
68.10.655 100.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Globalbees Brands Private Limited

As per revords of the Company. including s register of sharcholders members and other declarations received from sharcholders regarding beneficial interest, the above sharcholding

represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

As at As at % of change
March 31,2022 Mar 31, 2021 during the year
No. of Shares % of total No. of “n of 1otal 2% Change
shares Shares shares
¢ Details of equity shares held by promaters in the company st March 31, 2022

Ankur Goyal 0% 25.50.964 098.92% 9%
Cilabalbees Rrands Private Limited 68.10.655 100% - 0.00% 100%
Asat As at As at As at Asat As at
March 31, 2022 March 31,2022 Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31,2021 Apr (1, 2020 Apr0l, 2020
No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares v, holding

b Details of compulsorily convertible preference sha reholding more than 5% shares in the company

Matrix Partners India luvestrnesnts [l 0 00% 14.85.776 50 63% 14.33,651 51 55%
Extension. L1LC
Khalid Nagi . 0.00% 2.713.262 931% 273262 9 83%
Lara Shankar - 0.00% 1.74.850 5 96% 1. 74.850 6.29%
Beacon Trusteeship Limited- Sauce Capital 0.00% 2.36.060 8.04% 1.96,966 7.08%
Trust-Sauce Consumer Venture Capital |

0.00% 2.93.198 9.99% 2.60,620 9.37%

Beeline lmpex Private Limited

As per records of the Company. including 1ts register of shareholders members and other declartons received from sharcholders regarding beneficial interest, the above sharcholding

represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares,

As at As at % of change
March 31,2022 Mar 31, 2021 during the year
i Details of preference shares held by promaoters in the company at March 31,2022
No. of Shares % of total No of %0 of total %0 Change
shares Shares shares

Matrix Parers India Investmesnis 11 - 14.85.776 SO.63% 50.63%
Eatension, LLC ) o i
Khalid Nagi 2.73.262 931% 931%
Lara Shankar 1.74 850 S.96% -5.96%
Beacon Trusteeship Limuted- Sauce Capital 2.36.060 8.04% 8.04%

s 3 ; : 2.30. { -8.04%
T'rust-Sauce Consumer Ventare Capital |
Beeline lmpex Private Limited 2.93.198 9 99% 100°

2.93.198 0 4

j The compulsorily convertible preference shares have been converted into equity shares in the ratio of 11 during the curment year

Kk The Company has not issued any bonus shares during the current year and immediately preceding current year
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Verhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March
(All amounts in INR Millions. unless otheriise scated)

31,2022

B11 Other equity

Securitios promium

Opening balance

Add - Issuc of Series Seed 4 Compulsory Convertible P!
Add - ¢ of Equity Shares

Add : Issue of Equity Shares on conversion of ceps

Closing balance

Equity contribution from parent
Opening balance

Add : Accrued during the year
Clocing balance

Surplus/(Deficit) as per statement of profit and loss
Opening balance

Add . Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at year end

reference Shares (CCPS)

Asat
March 31,2022

Asat
Mar 31, 2021

As at
Apr 01, 2020

124,68 114 46 72.36
16.91 10.22 42.01
18.80 0.10
28.01

188.49 124.68 114.46
17.19 P -
17.19 - .

(102.3%) (76.32) 119.05)
(R1.04) (25.30) (50.87)

(184.01) 102.38) (76.51)
21.66 22.30 7.95




Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
Notes forming part of the fimancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al amounts in INR Millions, uniess atherwise stated)

Asat Asat Asal
March 31, 2022 Mar 31,2021 Apr 01,2020

B12 Borrowings

Unsecured
Non-convertible debentures 2000

Serics A Redeemable Non Canvortible Dobontiro<

20.00 - >

Note -
The Company has issued 4 Serres A Unhisted. Unsecured. Redeemable, Non-convertible debenture of face value of Re 30 lakhs each on
private placement basis to Globalbees Rrands Private Limited for g penod of 3 years from the date of allotment at a 3¢ of wterest of 1% per

annum

Asat Asat As at
March 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021

B13 Provision
Provision for employ ce benefits

Provision for gratuity [R5} -
0.11 -

Asat As at Asat
March 31,2022 Mar 31,2021 Apr 01, 2020

Bl4 Borrowings
Current borrowings
Unsecured loans
from directors
from related party
from others

[o [
tofis
w2

Note: .
| Unsecured loan from other comporate carries interest rate of 1§%. The loan 15 repay able on demand
Asal Asat Asat

Muarch 31,2022 Mar 31, 2021 Apr 01,2020

BI1S Trade payables

I'rade payables
Outstanding dues to micro and smull enterpnses (Refer note no. B31) [URE
Ouistanding dues 10 creditors other than micro and small enterpnses 1614 178 ‘-I |
46.77 3178 7.11
Trade payable sgcing as at March 31, 2022
Quistanding far following period from due date of pay ment
Less than 1 year -2 yeary 2-3vears More than 3 Total

(i) MSMI .33 s
(11) Others 46 .;:; : - s
(111) Disputed- MOMT. : : 164
(iv) Disputed- Others ‘ :




Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year cnded March 31,2022
AN amounts in INR Millions_unless otherwise stazed)

‘Trade payable ageing as at March 31, 2021

Ouictanding for following period from due date of pavment

Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3years More thand Total
yearsy
(1) MSME - 5 = -
(11) Others

(ii1) Disputed- MSME

(1v) Disputed- Others " . B

I'rade payable ageing as al March 31, 2020

Quistanding for following period from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 yean 2-} years More than 3 Lotal
Acan
(1) MSME - S
(i) Others Tl - - 7.11
(111) Disputed- MSM1 - P 2
(1v) Disputed- Others - - %
Asat Avat Ay at

March 31, 2022 Mar 31,2021 Apr 01,2020

B16 Other financial liabiliries

Payable 1o ciployees 0.3 208 210
Imterest payable 1.7
1.40 1.08 210
Asat Asat As at
Murch 31, 2022 Nar M, 2021 Apr 01,2020
B17 Other current linbilities
Statutory dues 078 0.30 0s2
ALYANCC GOm Cuatmsta 1 04 013 126

1.82 0.43 0.78




Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in INR Millions. unless otherwise stated)

B22 Employee benefits expense

Salaries and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds

Staff welfare expenses

B23 Finance costs

Interest expenses
Interest on statutory dues
Interest on term loans
Interest on credit cards
Interest on credit facilities
Interest on debentures

Bank and other charges

B24 Depreciation and amortization expenses
Depreciation on tangible fixed assets
Amortisation on intangible {ixed assets

for the year ended

for the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
35.17 16.16

0.27 0.57

0.08 0.04

3549 16.77

for the year ended

for the vear ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
0.39 0.01
0.17 0.23

- 0.11

0.07
1.30 -
0.19 0,03
2.14 0.38

for the year ended
March 31, 2022

for the year ended
March 31, 2021

0.71

0.71




Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

for the year ended for the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
B25 Other expenses
Rent
- on building 0.65 0.85
- on plant and machinery 0.09 0.12
Warehousing cost 4.82 1.77
Legal and professional expenses 5.24 1.77
Travelling and conveyance expenses 0.09 0.03
Fee and subscription 0.82 0.79
Research and development 0.72 0.55
Rates & taxes 1.86 1.35
Insurance 0.18 0.25
Office expenses 0.11 0.06
Power and fuel expenses 0.12 0.49
Public welfare expenses - 3.04
Recruitment and trainings - 0.00
Bad debts 0.01 3.84
Business promotion, marketing and event expenses 21.53 32.11
Advertisement Expense 19.31 1.87
Sales commission 4.29 0.49
Shipping charges- outward 7.50 1.04
Loss on sale of fixed assets 0.44 0.02
Miscellaneous expenses 0.91 0.12
Auditor's remuneration
- Audit fee 0.16 0.08

- Tax audit fee

68.85 51.30




Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022
(Al amounts in INR Millions, unless othermvise stated)

B26 Earning per share (EPS)

The Company's Earnings per Share ("EPS") is determined based on the net profit attributable to the sharcholders of
the company. Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year.

for the year ended for the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Profit/ (loss) attributable to equity holders of the company (81.59) (25.86)
Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares

Number ot share at the beginning of the year 25.87,839 25.87.839

Total equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 68.10.655 25.87.839

Weighted average number of equity shares in caleulating basic EP 47.16.601 25.87.839
Compulsorily convertible preference shares

Number of share at the beginning of the year 29,34.292 27.81.170

Total Preference shares outstanding at the end of the year - 29.34.292
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS 15,28,969 28,43,677
Weighted average number of shares for basic and diluted EPS 62,45 570 84 31,516
Basic earnings per share (In Rs.) (17.30) (9.99)
Diluted earnings per share (In Rs.)# (17.30) (9.99)
Nominal value of equity shares (In Rs.) 1 |

4 The sorilv ¢ ertible sforance:d - s Al : s 2
# The Compulsorily convertible preference shares are anti-dilutive in nature, hence not considered in computation
of diluted EPS.




Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Al amounts in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

B27 Leases
Disclosure for Short-term Leases:

The Company entered into operating lease arrangements for its office premise

term of the Jease agreement with mutual consent of the parties.

A Lease payments recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss for the year:

2, There is no esealation clause or lock-in penod

I'he lease 1s renewable bevond the

March 31, 2022

for the year ended  for the vear ended  for the year ended
March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

a lcase payments recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss for the year

Minimum lease payments
Contingent rents

0.03

b Sub-lease payments received (or receivable) recognized in the statement of Profit and loss for

the year

B28 Fair value

0.85 091

a. Set out below, is a comparison by ¢lass ol the carrying amounts and fatr value of the company’'s financial instruments, other than those with carrving amounts that

are reasonable approximations of fair values.

The following table details the carrying amount and fair values of financial instruments:

.

March 31,2022

Fair value

Particulars FVIPL Amortised cost FVOCH| Total carrying
1 value|
Financial assets |
T'tade receivables - 25.50 | 25.50
Cash and cash equivalents - - 341 | 41
Other financial assets : 0.49 | g2
Total - - 29.40 | 29.40
a i
Financial liabilities ‘ |
Borrowings ‘
- Long term 20.00 = 20,00 | 20,00
- Short term - 2 | - -
I'rade payable = 46.77 - 46.77 ‘ 16.77
Other financial liabilitics 140 - 1.40 | 1.40
Total - 68.17 - | 68.17 | 68.17
: March 31, 2021
Particulars FVTPL Amortised cost F\'()(‘I‘ Total carrying] Fair value
“ | value|
Financial assets
l‘mdc receivables 4.17 - 4.17 ‘ 4.17
Cash and cash equivalents - 1.73 - 1.73 ; 1.73
Other financial asscts 0.96 o 1)“1( :
Total | .96 | 0.96
- 6.85 = | 6.85 | 6.85
Financial liabilities
Borrowings |
- Long term
- Short term ,— 14 T i B
Trade payable e = 2.22 | 2.2
Other financial Liabilitics : ® ) j 3.78 | 378
Total - =2 il 2.08 | 2.08
508 s 8.08 | 8.08
Particulars e April 01, 2020
FVIPL  Amorticed cost FVOCI]| Total carrying) i e
Financial assets ! value|
I'rade receivables ; ‘
Cash and cash equivalents ) e . , 6.06 | 6.06
Other financial assets ) e "o 24.66 | 24.66
Total - 0.95 - 0.95 | 0.95
ELEH % 3167 ] 3167
Financial liabilities |
Trade payable | J
Other financial liabilitics 7 ° ‘ 7.1 711
Total - 210 - 200 | ) 10
: 921 -] 921 5.
] .. 21

The fair value of he ancial assets and habthies s includec C amount at whic ¢ nstrument could be exchanged
{ T I assets and hal tuded at 1l 1 h the instrument i red
S i )| n
h Xy

parties. other than in a forced or ligudation salc,

acurrent transaction between willing
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

b. Fair value hierarchy

I'he table shown helow analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method

below:

>

as prices) or indirectly (i.e.. derived from prices).

>

I'he following table shows the Levels within the hierarchy of tinancial and non-financial assets and Labilities measured at fair value on a recurring

31,2022, March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 -

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in acuve markets tor identical assets or Liabilities
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within I evel | that are observable for the assct or Lability, either directly ti.e.,

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

I'he different levels have been defined

basis at March

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2021:
Particulars Date of valuation Total Fair value measure using
Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets|  observable inputs| unobservable inputs

(Level 1)

(Level 2)

(level 3)

Assets measured at fair value:
FVTPL financial investments
Quoted mutual funds

21 -Mar-22

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hicrarchy for assets as

at March 31, 2021:

n

Particulars

Date of valuation

Total

Fair value measure us

Quoted pricesin
active markets|
(Level 1)

Significant
vable inputs;
(Level 2)

obs

Significant
unobservable inputy)
(Level 3)

Assets measured at fair value:
FUTPL financial invectmente

3-Mar-21

Quoted mutual funds

at March 31, 2020:

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hicrarchy for assety as
Particulars Date of valuation Total Fair value measure using
Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets|  observable inputs| unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets measured at fair value:
FVTPL financial investments
Quoted mutual funds

31-Mar-20

There have been no transters between Level Tand Level 2 during the current linancial year

B29 Financial risk management objectives and policies

Risk management objectives and policies
The company 1s Lt\pl\.\'cd to vanous risks in relation to financial instruments. The main types of nisks are market nsk. credit risk and liguidity nsk. "The company s
activities expose it to hquidity risk and credit nisk. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to ;
related impact in the financial statements.,

and how the entity manages the risk and the

Risk

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

Exposure arising from

Cash and cash cquivalents, trade receivables, financial assels

measured at amortised cost

Borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities

Measurement

Aging analysis

Rolling cash flow

Management

Bank deposits, diversification of asset base and credit limits

Availability of sources of funds

a. Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash cquivalents, trade recen

Credit risk exposure

Provision for expected credit losses

In respect to other financial assets,

, . the company follows a 12-months
on account of credit risk due to the nature

ables, investments carried at amortised cost and

o expected credit loss approach.
and credit worthiness of these financial ¢

i - L S ancial ass
such financial assets. Therefore, the company h o

as not provided for any expected credit loss on these financial

deposits with banks and financial institutions

: The company's management does not foresee matertal loss
- Further, the company has not observed any material defaults in recovering
assets exeept for trade receivables. :

March 31, 2022

Particulars

Estimated gross
carrying amount

l~',xp1:clcd!
probability of|

Expected credit]
losses|

Carrying amount
net of impairment

Cash deposits with banks at default; defaulti I provision
Irade and other receivables ‘ L” 0.00%| - 341
Other financial assets 2k 0.00%] - 25.50
0.49 | .
% | 0.49
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! ended Mare 202
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Al amounts in INR Millions, unless otherwise siated)

Moarch 31, 2021

xpected] xpec odit|  Carrying amount
Estimated gross L\pccudj Expected crtdhi Car £ I v
e carrying amount probability of| |o~'.~ics! net of impai N
" at default default! | prov Il.s_'olu
1 1 K
1.73 [l.“U"n: - j ®
Cash deposits with banks i pocii | (J’ 3)(
i B ey o ! i
I'rade and other receivables . B .
Other financial asscts
April 01, 2020
) X g dit] arrying amount
Estimated gross l;xpcctcdi Expected cruht! (Llrr':\ilng AdiTmcm
SRS carrying amount probability of| lasscsi net of impa o
. at default dcl‘nul!! ‘ pw:r(,(,
24,66 0.00%| = | 24,
Cash deposits with banks . b o 0‘?(‘)
Trade and other receivables oot ol N ok
Orher financial asscly

Expected eredit loss for trade reccivables under simplified approach

¢ it Kave saft serfle ihe
As at March 31, the company has cenain trade receivables that have not been seitled by the

amounts as at March 31, analysed by the length of time past due, are:

contractual due date but are not considered to be impaired. The

March 31, 2022

More than 6 months

a 0.00% |

: S xpecte oditl  Carrying amount
Estimated gross Expected| Fxpected cruln,‘ \ r ;.,‘ L
Particulars carrying amount probability nF‘ Iosscsi net of impairn
at default defaulti :
= 0.00% - g
i | 5.5
Not due 25 50 0.00%| g | 233
Not more than 6 months . ‘ 0.00% "! i )
Mare than 6 months
Mareh 31,2021
Estimated gross E\pcclcd; Expected credit)  Carrying nmoun:
Pt * e abili sses|  net of impairmen
R carrying amount probability "ﬂi losses, PrmNon
at default default] ‘ Provis
- 0.00% = | \|
Not due = o | . | 417
4.1 0,00%] i
Not more than 6 months i o, T
More than 6 months = 3 |
April 01, 2020
Particulars Estimated gross Expected! Expected croditi ('nrr}‘lmu u.moum
; carrying amount probability of| losses|  net of impairment
at default default| provision
o ] -
Not due . 0.00% 1
| 8 i (16
Not more than 6 months 6.06 0.00% | 6

In respect of trade and other receivables, the company is exposed 1o significant credit exposure 1o a group of counterpartics having simlar ch
historical information about customer default rz

I'he credit nisk for cash and cash equivalents is conside

Other financial assets being investments are also due from severs
management considers the quality of such

b. Liquidity risk

Prudent Liquidity risk management implies maint

committed credit facilin

Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the company’s fin

labilities, and

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contr;
discounting is not significant.

ancial habilities into re

aiming sufficient cash

ts of the company”s liquidity position and cash
ket in which the ennity oper

ancing plans,

actual undiscounted cash Nlows Balances due within 12

and marketable sceurities and the avanl
es 1o meet obligatons when due Due to the nature
avatlabtlity under commited facilitics.

Management monitors rolling forec:
into account the liquidity of the mar
major cwrencies and considenng the level of liqud
regulatory requirements and mamtaining debt fin

Al counter parties and based on historical information about defaults from the
asscts that are not past due 1o be goad

levant maturity groupings based on their contractua) m.

and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.

mtes In addition, the company’s liquidity management palicy involves proj
assets necessary 1o meet these,

monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and o

aracteristics. Based on

tes, management consider the eredit quality of trade receivables that are not past due 1o be good.

red neghigible, since the counterpartics are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

counter partes,

abihity of funding through an adequate amount of
of the business, the company maintains flexibility funding

by maintaininy

Ihe company takes
ccting cash Nows in

stérnal

aturities for all non-derivative financial

months cqual their carrying balances as the impact of

' March 31, 2022
Particulars arrvi ! = 0

et Carrying amount] Tece than 1 veny 13 year, Above 3 years | Total
Bormowings 20.00 . 20.00 - ] 20.00
Trade payable 46.77 46.77 ‘. i _l 27
Other financial liabilities 1.40 1.40 o : T';u‘
T - - ! il
Total 68.17 48.17 i

® i 08.17




Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al amounts in INR Millions, unless otherwise stared)

March 31, 2021

Particulars Carrying amount| Less than | year 1 - 3 year| Above 3 years | Total
Borrowings 2.22 2.22 - - 222
Trade payable 3.78 y s 4 = | 3.78
Other financial liabilities 2.08 - - | 2.08
Total 8.08 - - 8.08
March 31, 2020
Particulars Carrying amount| Less than 1 vear 1 -3 year| Above 3 vears | Total
Borrowings - - S - .
Trade payable 7.11 7.1 - s 7.11
Other financial liabilitics 210 2.10 - - | 2.10
Total 9.21 9.21 - -] 9.21

B30 Capital management policies and procedures
The company’s capital management objectives are Lo ensure the company s ability (0 continue as a going concern as w cll as 1o provide a balance between financial
flexibility and balance sheet efficiency. In determming its capital structure, company considers the robustnese of future cash flows, potential funding requirements

for growth opportunities and acquisitions, the cost of capital and eaxe ol access 0 funding sources.

Management assesses the company’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure while avoiding excessive leverage. This
takes into account the subordination levels of the company’s various classes af debr. The company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments 1o 1t in the
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk charactenstics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to sharcholders, return capiial to sharcholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The amounts managed as capital by the group for the reporting vears under review are scummarized as follows ©

As at As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021 Apr 01, 2020,
Total borrowings 20.00 in -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 341 1.73 24.00
Net debt 16.59 0.50 (24.66)
Total cquity 2845 54.23 68.35
Total Capital 45.04 473 43.09
Gearing ratio 8% 1% 0%
B31 Related party disclosures
Names of the related parties and related party relationship
Related parties where control exists
a) Key Management Personnel
I\-lilin '\lf““""l Director (w.e.f. 30.09.2021)
Supam Satyanarayan Maheshwan Director (w.c.f. 30.09.2021)

b) Enterprise having control over the company

Globalbees Brands Private Limuted

Holding Company (w.¢.l. September 29, 2021)

¢) Enterprises over which key management personnel or their rel
Cloud Lifestyle Private Limited
Eyezen Technologies Private Fimited
Mush Textiles Private Limited
Better & Brighter Home Care Private Limited
Butternut Ventures Private Limited

atives and/or holding company has significant influence.

Dynamic IT Solution Private [imited
Kuber Mart Industrics Private Limited //
Maxinique Solution Private Limited

HealthyHey Foods [LP /
DF Pharmacy Limited &
HS Fimess Pyt Lid 3




Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited

Notes

forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Al amounts in LNR Miltions. unfess othenvise stared)

Related party relationships are as identified by the company and relicd upon by the auditors -

Key Management Personnel

Enterprise having control over the company

As at
Apr 01, 2020

Asat
Mar 31, 2021

Asat
March 31, 2022

March 31, 2022

As at
Mar 31, 2021

As at

As at

Apr 01, 2020

Remuneration paid
Ankur Goyal 0.45 1.29 1.85
Shetd Mital . .68 3,70

Enterprises over which key management personnel or their
relatives and holding company has significant influence

Purchase of stock in trade

Better And Brighter Homecare Private Lumited
HButternut Ventires Private Limied

Cloud Lifestyle Private Limited

Dynanue 1T Solutions Pyt Ltd

Lyezen Technologies Pyt hd

Globalbees Brands Private Limited

39.05 =
2.00
(.74
4.29

Healthy Hey Foods LLP
5

HS Fitness Pyt Lid n..»l
Maxinique Solution Pyt hd 4.53
Mush Textile Private Limited (.84

Payables as at Mar 31 3539 - -
Better And Brighter Homecare Private Limited 3.14
Cloud Lifestyle Private Limited. 288
Dynamic I'T Solutons Pyt Lid 7.72
Everzen Technologies Pyt RIER
Globalbees Brands Private Limited 0.82
Healthy Hey Foods LLP 492
HS Fitness Pyt Lid 0.25
Maxinique Solution Pyt S34
Mush Texule Prvate Limited 1188

Advance to YVendors 0.06 - -
Butternut Ventures Private Limited 0.06

Redeemahle Non Convertible Debentures 20.00 ] =
Globalbees Brands Private Limited 20000

Interest on Non Convertible Debentures 1.30 - -
Ulobaibees Brands Private Liniited }.30

Interest Payable on Debentures 1.17 - -
Globalbees Brands Private Limited 1.17

Issue of Equity Shares 20.00 - -
Globalbees Brands Private Limited 20.00

B32 Disclosures under Micro Smull and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006
Particulars e yon v
bl As s

March 31,2022

Mar 31, 2021

Apr DL, 2020

~

©

The principal amount and the interest duc thereon (10 be shown separately) remaining unpaid 10|
any supplicr as at the end of cach accounting year. Interest amount is Nil (P.Y. Nil)

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terme of Section 16 of the Micro Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act, 2006, along with the amounts ol the payment made (o the supplier]

beyond the appomted day during cach avvcuniing year,

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay e making payment (which have
been but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specitied
under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006

The amount of mterest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting vear.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeeding years. until
such date When the interest dues as above are actually paid (o the small cnlv;nr-mc for the|
purpose of disallowance As a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

0.33 “

\ )
gt/




Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
Notes forming part of the ninancial statements for the year ¢nded Mareh 31, 2022
(Al amounts in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

The munistry of Micro, Small and Medium enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26/08/2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small
Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entreprencurs Memorandum Number as allocated after (iling of the Memorandum
Based on the information available with the management, there are no over dues outstanding 1o micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Further, the company has not recetved any claim for interest from any supplier under the said act

Employee benefit obligations
Disclosure of gratuity (non-funded)

T'he Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972 Employees who are in continuous service for a penod of 3

Movement in the liability recognised in the balance sheet is as under:
Description As at
March 31, 2022
Present value of defined benelit obligation as at the start of the year -
Current service cost 0.06
Interest cost -
Actuanal loss/(gain) recognized during the year - 0.03
Changes in financial assumptions =
Experience variance =
Benefits pad -
Past service cost -
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 0.11
I'here are no plan assets.
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss iy as unsers
Description As at
March 31,2022
Current service cost (.06
Interest cost -
Past service cost -
Actuarial loss/(gain) -
Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss 0.06
Current / Non-current bifurcation
As at

Description

March 31, 2022

Current Benefit Obligation™

(0.11)

Non - current Benefit Obhigation

Liability rctqgniscd.in Balunce Sheet (0.11)

* Absolute amount of provision for gratutity is Rs 4,489/

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income:

Description As at
Asa

March 31, 2022

Amount recognised in OCI, beginning of the year
Actuarial loss/(gain):

change in financial assumptions

change in demographic assumptions

experience variance (i.c. Actual expenence vs assumptions)

Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense %05
Amount recognised in OCI, end of the vear v
0,03
Total Defined Benefit Cost/(Income) included in Profit & Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Description
Ay ut
Amount recognized in Profit and loss, Fnd of Period Marceh 31, 2022
Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income, End of Period 0.06
Total Net Defined Benefit Cost/(lncome) Recognized at Period-End 0.05
0.11
Actuarial assumptions
Desceription
Asat
I?lscounl rale March 31, 2022
Puture salary increase 6.40%
10.00%

Demographic assumptions

Mortality

TALM (2012-2014)

Employee turmover / Withdrawal rate
Retirement age

Ultimate
———]
20.00%,

S8 yeurs|
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al amounts in INR Millions, unless otherwise siated)

Fxpected cash flow for next ten years

Agat
March 31, 2022

0.00
Year-2023 0,01
Year-2024 0.01
Vear-2028 0.02
Year-2026 0.04
Year-2027 0,23
Year-2028 to Year 2032
Defined Benenit Oblgation By Participant Statuy

As at

March 31, 2022

Actives

Vested Deterreds

Retirees

Total Defined Benefit Obligation

Sensitivity analysls

As at
March 31, 2022
0.10
Defined benefit obligation - Discount rate = 100 basis points “.::
Defined benefit obligation - Discount rate - 100 basis points o
Defined benefit obligation - Salary escalation rate * 100 basis points b
Defined benefit obligation - Salary escalation rate - 100 basis points o
Defined benetit obligation - Withdrawal rate = 100 basis pomts o

Delined benefit obligation - Withdrawal rate - 100 basis points

Average Duration

Weighted average duration of the plan is 9.7 years.

B34 Segment reporting

§ g 3 ‘ g 1S ich as per 4 ke g Standard - 108 on
I'he Company 1s primarily engaged 10 the business of manutacturing and trading of other food products, which as per Indian Accounting «

'Operating Segments’ is constdered to be the anly reportable cegment

B35 Key Financial Ratios

Particulars for the year ended for the year ended Chissge % Reason for change
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021 if more than 25%

Current ratio 1.95 4.01 105% Primarily on account

Debt Equity ratio 0.70 0.04 <94% o 100%  business

Debt scrvice cov crage ralio (13.93) (7.49) -46% sold 10 Globalbees

Return on Equity (%) (197 (0142) -79% during  the  current

Inventory Turnover ratio 342 4.71 3R% year  and  funds

Irade Reccivables Tumover ratio 6.43% 11.00 72% infused by the parent

I'rade Payables Tumover ratio 3.04 384 26% company in - current

Net Capital Turnover Ratio 2.00 221 1 1% year.

Net profit margin (%) (0.86) (0.40) A47%

Return on Capital Employed (%) (1.13) (0.62) 450,

Return on Investment - 047 0%,

Detailed explanation of ratios

Current Ratio

The Current Ratio is a hquidity ratio that meusures a Company’s ability o pay short-erm obligations or those duc within one year. Itis calculated by

cdividing the
current assets by current labihties.

Debt Equity Ratio

The ratio is used to evaluate a Company's financial leverage. [t is a measure of the degree to which a Company is financing its operations through debt versus
wholly owned funds 1t1s calculated by dividing a Company's total debt by its sharcholder's equity

Debt service coverage ratio

I'he Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) measures the ability of i company to usc its operating income to repay all its debt obligauons, including repayment of
principal and interest on both short-term and long-term debt. It 1s calculated by dividing the carnings before interest.non-cash operating expenditure and tax by
finance cost plus principal repayment of debt
Return on Equity

Return on Equity (RoE) 15 a measure of profitability of a Company expressed in percentage. It s caleulated by dividing profitloss afler tax for the period by
average Equity funds employed dunng the penod.

Inventory Turnover ratio

Inventory Turnover is the number of times a Com ver by average inventory.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in INR Millions. unless otherwise stated)

Trade Receivables Turnover ratio
The above ratio is used o quantify a Company’s cffectiveness in collecting its receivables or money owed by customers The
uses and manages the credit it extends to customers and how guickly that short-term debt is collected or is paid. 101s caleulated by dividing Net Credit sales by

ratio shows how well a Company
¢
average trade receivables.

Trade Payables Turnover ratio
The accounts pavable turnover ratio shows investors how many times per period a company pays its accounts payable. In ather words, the ratio measurcs the speed
its suppliers. It is caleulated by dividing net eredit purchases by average trade payables.

at which a company pay

Net Capital Turnover ratio
It measures the entity's ability o generate sales per rupee of long-term investment. A higher ratio indicates better utilization of long-term tunds of owners and the

lenders. It is calculated by dividing turnover by Working capital

Net Profit Margin (%)
The net profit margin is equal to how much net income or profit is generated as a percentage of total income. It 1s calculated by dividing the profit for the year by

total income,

Return on Capital Employed
Return on Capital Employed (RoCE) ts o financial ratio that measures a Company’s profitability and the cfficiency with which its eapital isused. In other words,

the ratio measures how well a Company is generating profits from its capital. 1t 18 caleulated by dividing profit before exceptional items, Finance cost and tax by

eapital employed during the penod.

Return on Investment
Return on investment (RO is a financial ratio used 10 calculate the benefit an investor will receive m relation 1o their investment cost. It is most commonly

measured as net invomy divided by the vriginal vapital vost of the investment, The higher the ratio, the greater the henelit eamed

B36 Commitments and contingent liabilities
There were no commitments and contingent liabilities as at March 31, 2022, March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020,

B37 First time adoption of Ind AS
I'hese are the Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS,
The accounting policies set out in Note A(2) have been applied in prepanng the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022, the comparative
information presented in these financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at Apnl 01,2019
(the Company’s date of ransiton). AR explanation of how (he wanstion iom previous GAAF 1 Ind AS has atfected the Company s financial position, financial
pertormance and cash flows is set out in the following tables and notes

A Ind AS optional exemptions

i Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets
Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its propeny. plant and equipment as recogmsed in the financial
statements as at the date of transition 0 Ind AS, measured as per the Previous GAAP and use that as us deemed cost as at the date of transiton after making
necessary adjustments for de-commussioning liabilines. This exemption can also be used for mtangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets and
f‘n\c.\u.ncm propurty ul.\cn:d by Ind AN 40 Invesunent Propeity. Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of u.; property, plant Jn:I cquipment and
intangible assets at their Previous GAAP camying value.

B Ind AS mandatory exceptions

i Estimates
An en r'»' >l " A 1 v ! A ¥ s date e i X
P e ity (s‘ unznmu in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition 10 Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with
Q% < ” . s o < . “(*1 e - A, : '
: ru]\l\:us v..“\/\l (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error
nd AS estimates as at 1 April 2020 are consiste s estimaltes as ¢ ormi i GAAP. The ;
nd 4 — I April 2020 are Lnn.sfslunl with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with Previous GAAP. The Company made estimates
tor following m;rps inaccordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under Previous GAAP - ) S
- Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model ’

i Classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities

I‘hL' af e - . 3 9 " fin: o aQ 1
he cli ‘Iud“\";l .'md measurement of financial assets will be made considering whether the conditions as per Ind AS 109 are met b
circumstances existing at the date of transition, - .

tsed on facts and

Financial assets can be measured using effective interest method by ascessing

A e contractual cash flow vharacterist S
AN . = o of . 2 . ) stey enly on the basis of fa¢
existing at the date of transition and if'i is mpracticable (0 assess the use i Dasts o fic

et %0 ok S dnd circumstances
ofeffective interest method, fair value of financial asset at the date of transition shall be

the new carrying amount of that asset, The measurement exemption applies for financial labilities as well
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(' Reconciliations between Previous GAAP and Ind AS

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity. total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods, The following tables represent the reconciliations

from Previous GAAP to Ind AS.

i Reconciliation of total equity as at March 31, 2021 and April 01, 2020

Note

As at
Mar 31, 2021

Ax at
Apr 01,2020

Total equity (sharcholder’s funds) as per Previous GAAP
Adjustments:

Measurement of financial assets and liabilities at fair value
Reversal of processing fees paid on loan

Amortisation of transaction cost

Deterred tax on above adjustments

Reversal of ESOP expenses recogmsed

Recognition of Expenses for ESOP not recognised carlier
Recognition of ESOP outstanding forming part of equity

Note |

54.23

68.33

Total adjustments

Total equity as per Ind AS

6835

Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2021

As at
Mar 31,2021

Profit / (Loss) after tax as per Previous GAAP

Adjustments:

Giain on fair value of mutual funds

Deferred tax expenses

Reversal of processing fees paid on Joan

Amortisation of transaction cost

Remeasurement of defined benetit obligations reclassilied o OCT (net of tax)
Share issue expenses

QOP

(23.86)

Total adjustments

Profit / (Loss) for the year ended March 31, 2021

(25.86)

Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations reclassified o OCT (net of tax)

Total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2021

(25.86)




Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Al amounts in INR Millions. unless otherwise s

tated)

iii Reconeiliation of the assets and liabilities presented in the balance sheet prepared as per Previous GAAP and as per Ind AS as at

April 01, 2020 is as follows:

March 31, 2021 and

March 31,2021

April 01,2020

Per Previous Ind AS Per Ind AS Per Previous Ind AS| Per Ind AS
GAAP Adjustments/| GAAP Adjustments/
regrouping regrouping
ASSETS
Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1.51 1.51 223 223
Intangible assets a 0.03 0.03
Dercncd i naciy (ney) 20,23 - 20.93 185.06 E 15,00
Non-current tax assets - 0.16 0.16 - 0.08 0.08
Total non-current assets 28.44 0.16 28.59 20.32 0.08 20.40
Current assets
Inventories 10.90 10.90 13.16 - 13.16
Iinancial assets
1. Trade recervables 4.17 417 6.06 6.06
1. Cash and cash equivalents 173 - 173 24.66 - 24.06
i1 Other financial agsetg g 96 096 . 0.95 0.95
Other current assets 0.17 16.22 16.38 0.15 12.96 1212
Total current assets 16.96 17.18 34.13 44.03 13.92 57.94
Total Assets 45.39 17.33 62.73 64.35 14.00 78.34
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
[quity share capital 259 2.59 2.59 259
Instrument entirely equity i naturd 29,34 3 2934 27.81 = 27.81
Other equity 22.30 (0.00) 22,30 37.95 0.94 3R.89
Total equity 54.23 (0.00) 54.23 68.35 0,94 69.29
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings -
Total non-current liabilities -
Current Liabitities
Financial habihties
1. Borrowings - 2.22 222 - - -
n Irade p:l:w\hlcs 2.81 0,97 378 419 2.92 711
11 Other financial labilitics - 2.08 208 = 2.10 2.10
-(I-)[hc; current habilities 5.70 (3.27) 0.43 6.07 (5.29) (_ll”.\'
otal current liabilitics :
abilitics 8.50 0.01 8.51 10.27 (0.27) 10.00
Total liabilities 8.5% 0 =
L 8.51 10.27 0.27) 10.00
Total Equity & Liabilities 2
quity 62.79 .01 62,78 78.61 0.67 7930




Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation of the income and expenses presented in the s N rofit a S8 prepare s per ian GAAP and as per Ind AS for the year
pe prese ¢ statement of p and loss prepared as pe India y; P
€Col

ended March 31, 2021 is as follows:

March' 31, 2021 :
Per Previous| Ind AS Per Ind AS
GAAP Adjustmenis/
regrouping
INCOME — ) 5('{‘(7
Revenue from operations Py ] ‘(l. 24
Other ingome: T - 701
Total income
g 3
EXPENSES 306 ) 5001
Purchases of traded goods 23 23:’
Changes in inventornes o 0.64 “’-i ‘}
Employee benefits expense e i ”.:\
Finance costs e ) '0. .
Depreciation and amortisation expense okl - :';“’
Other expenses Sk o0 RE
‘Total expenses
(34.72)
(34.73) 0.01
Profit/(L.oss) hefore tax
Tax expense: ) _ \‘_\m
Current tax expense A% 887
Deferred tax (expense)/credit = = g
Total
101 (25.85)
(25.86) 0.0
Net profit for the yvear
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss ) '
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans ‘ ) )
Income tax relating to items not reclassified
Items that may be reclassified 1o profit or loss )
Current year gains (Josses)
Income tax relating 1o items not reclassitied
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) - - -
28,85
Total comprehensive income for the vear (25.86) 0.01 ( )

Note-1
Measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost

Under Previous GAAP, all financial assets and financial labiliies were camied

Under Ind AS, certain financial assets and financial habihuies
method. In applying the effective interest method
effective interest rate is the rate that ex
lability (0 the gross carrying amount of the financial assetor financial hability.
For certain financial liabilitics, the fair vilue of the financial liability ai the
finuncial Liability at the date ot transition o Ind AS

B38 Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifics new st
issued from tme o time. On March 23, 2022, M

"

1CA amended the Companie:
2022, as below:

Ind AS 103 - Reference to Conceptual Framework
The amendments specity that 1o qualily for recognition as part of applving the
meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Coneeptual Framework for [
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indi

Company does not expeet the amendment 1o have any significant imp.

andard or amendmenis 1o the existing st

s (Indian Accounting Stand

i at the acquisition date. These

date of wransition o Ind AS has been considered

andards under Com

acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired
mancial Reporting under Indian Accounting Stand,
changes do not significant]
act in its linancial statements.

are subsequently measured at amortised cost which involves the application of ef!
< an entity identifies fees that are an integral p
actly discounts estimated future cash

eelive interest

art of the cffective interest rate of a financial instrument I'he
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial

asset or financial

as the new amortised cost of that

panies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as
ards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from Apnil 1,

and habilities assumed must
ards (Conceptual Framework)
v change the requirements of Ind AS 103, The



Merhaki FFoods and Nutrition Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)
Ind AS 16 - Proceeds before intended use
The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the
company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not
expect the amendments to have any impact in its recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its financial statements

Ind AN 37 = Onerous Contraces - Costy of Fulfilling @ Contrace

The amendments specify that the “cost of fulfiling” a contract comprises the “costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate direetly to o contract can
cither be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direet labour, materals) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to tfulfilling
contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification and the Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impactin its financial statements.

Ind AS 109 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)
The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it apphes the “10 percent” test of Ind AS 109 in ass
The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

ssing whether to derecognise o financial hability.

Ind AS 116 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leaschold improvements by the lessor in order 1o resolve any potential confusion regarding the
treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives were deseribed in that illustraton. The Company does not expect the amendment to
have any significant impact in its financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For Y T Gandhi & Associates
Chartered Accountgnis

For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
Merhaki Foods and Nutrition Private Limited
CIN-U24100RJ2017PTCO59188

Supam Maheshwari itin Aaarwal
Dircctor weclor

DIN - 01730683 IFR00022457

crship No. 215599

IN" 9R2455IIAPCI Y1 A3
alde !
16 /08029 -

Date -



